
SEMINOLE STATE COLLEGE 

BOARD OF REGENTS SPECIAL MEETING 

Tuesday, September 24, 2024 

 

Luncheon 

Enoch Kelly Haney Center – Room #204 

2701 Boren Blvd., Seminole, OK 74868 

12:15 P.M. 

 

Business Session 

Enoch Kelly Haney Center – Board Room 

2701 Boren Blvd., Seminole, OK 74868 

1:00 P.M. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS 

  

III. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS 

 

IV. READING AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 

• Regular Meeting Minutes July 18, 2024 

 

Board Action:  Approve/Reject/Revise/Table 

 

 

V. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

  

Financial Report – August 31, 2024 

 

 Report on Purchases over $15,000 for July - None 

 

 Report on Purchases over $15,000 for August:  

• Labster Inc.    $19,320.50 

• Village Tours LLC   $20,355.00 

• Circle P Painting   $19,540.00 

• Crawford & Associates, PC $23,662.91 

 

VI. HEARING OF DELEGATIONS 

None at the time of the filing of the agenda 

 

VII. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

• Personnel Update 

• Campus Activities  

• Enrollment Report 

• Higher Learning Commission Review 

• Early College Program Approval 

• Oklahoma Board of Nursing Site Visit 



Agenda 

SSC Board of Regents Special Meeting 

September 24, 2024 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

VIII. BUSINESS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Approval of the following item: 

 

 Program Deletion – Associate in Arts in Art  

 

Board Action:  Approve/Reject/Revise/Table 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

The Seminole State College Board of Regents may discuss, vote to approve, vote to deny,  

vote to table, change the sequence of any agenda item, or decide not to take up or  

vote on any item on this Agenda. 

 

 

If you need disability-related accommodation or wheelchair access information,  

please contact: Office of ADA compliance at 405-382-9216.   

Requests should be made by September 23, 2024 

 

C. Review and consider approval of revisions to Board Policy II-4-19 regarding Leaves 

and Absences: All Full-Time Employees 

 

Board Action:  Approve/Reject/Revise/Table 

 

 

A. Review and consider approval of bid from Dave Haynie, LLC for a motor pool 

secured parking lot in the amount of $189,300 

 

Board Action:  Approve/Reject/Table 

 

 

B. Review and consider approval of bid from Dave Haynie, LLC for sidewalk and 

drainage repair on campus in the amount of $363,975 

 

Board Action:  Approve/Reject/Table 

 



Minutes 

SEMINOLE STATE COLLEGE  
BOARD OF REGENTS REGULAR MEETING 

July 18, 2024 

I. Call to Order

The Seminole State College Board of Regents’ regular monthly meeting was called to
order at 1:00 p.m. in the Board Room of the Enoch Kelly Haney Center.

II. Roll Call of Members

Roll call was conducted. Regent Ryan Franklin, and Regent Bryan Cain were absent. The
members present were Marci Donaho, Ryan Pitts, Robyn Ready and Teresa Burnett.

Brad Burnett administered the Oath of Office to newly appointed member, Teresa
Burnett.

III. Introduction of Guests

President Reynolds introduced administrators and staff present at the meeting. Special
recognition was given to Jessica Isaacs, Dean of Instruction; Brad Burnett, husband of
newly appointed Regent Teresa Burnett; and Brooks Nickell, Web and Multimedia
Coordinator.

IV. Minutes

There being no additions or corrections to the minutes of the regular meeting held June
20, 2024; Regent Morgan made a motion to approve the minutes as written and Regent
Pitts seconded the motion.  Roll call was as follows:  Morgan, yes; Pitts, yes, Ready, yes;
Burnett, yes and Donaho, yes.

V. Communications to the Board

Financial Report – Melanie Rinehart, Vice President for Fiscal Affairs presented a
review of the College’s revenue and expenses through June 30, 2024.  Regent Pitts made
a motion to approve the Financial Report as presented and Regent Ready seconded the
motion.  Roll call was as follows:  Morgan, yes; Pitts, yes, Ready, yes; Burnett, yes and
Donaho, yes.

Purchases over $15,000 for June
• Air Force 1 A/C and Heating - $77,680.00



Minutes 
SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 
July 18, 2024 
Page 2 

 
VI. Hearing of Delegations 
 

None   
 

VII. President’s Report 
 

President Reynolds discussed items under the President’s Report and the Business 
portion of the agenda by utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. (See enclosed copy of the 
PowerPoint presentation) 
 
Personnel Update – President Reynolds gave a personnel update.  Jessica Isaacs was 
named Dean of Instruction and Dr. Misty Gray was named the Division Chair for the 
Health Sciences Division.  Calvonis Prentice was hired as a Talent Search Advisor. 
 
Nursing Program Update – President Reynolds gave an update on the nursing program.  
Several representatives from the SSC Administration and the nursing division attended 
the Oklahoma Board of Nursing meeting on the morning of July 18, 2024.  A request to 
allow students to be admitted to the Seminole State College nursing program while under 
conditional status was denied by the Oklahoma Board of Nursing (OBN). A split vote of 
4-3 upheld the current admissions sanction on the program. She said the OBN was very 
complimentary of the SSC nursing faculty for their work and the improvement made in 
student passage rates on the licensing exams. 
 
George Barr Baseball Collection Update – President Reynolds updated the Regents on 
the George Barr Baseball Collection.  This collection was loaned to the Oklahoma Sports 
Hall of Fame Museum in Guthrie, Oklahoma in 2013.  This museum is closing, and the 
director has reached out to SSC about relocating the collection to the History Center in 
Oklahoma City.  President Reynolds contacted the History Center about the collection.  
They will be happy to take the donation but cannot confirm the collection will be 
displayed.  President Reynolds asked the Regents about their thoughts about what to do 
with the baseballs.   
 
Title IX Policy Development – President Reynolds presented information about the 
development and update of the College’s Title IX policy.  These updates are required at 
the federal level, but the Oklahoma State Attorney General is disputing the changes.  The 
Attorney General’s office has advised that if the new policy is adopted by SSC and a 
lawsuit results, the AG’s office will not represent the College.  President Reynolds 
recommended that the Board wait to implement the changes after the dispute between 
federal and State entities has been resolved. 
 
Enrollment Update – President Reynolds gave the Board and update on enrollment 
numbers.  Summer 2024 headcount is up 12.61% and credit hours are up 9.59% when 
compared to the final Summer 2023 numbers.  Fall headcount is down .73% and hours 



Minutes 
SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 
July 18, 2024 
Page 3 

have increased by 1.25% when compared to the enrollment numbers on the same day last 
year for fall 2023. 
  
Campus Activities – President Reynolds told the Board members about several campus 
activities. These were: 
 
 SSC Enrollment Management team attended the National “Element451: Engage 

Summit” in Raleigh, North Carolina 
 SSC infielder Caden Powell was named the 2024 NJCAA Division 1 National 

Baseball Player of the Year 
 Kids on Campus was held and included two – one weeklong camps, offered 9 

different courses and included 26 students that attended 83 different camp 
sessions 

 SSC Athletic Director Leslie Sewel thew out the opening pitch of the Oklahoma 
City Spark’s game on July 3rd 

 Upward Bound had two trips for their summer campers.  The Bridge group 
traveled to Boston, Massachusetts and the rest of the campers traveled to St. 
Louis, Missouri 

 The SSC Public Relations Team attended the annual OCPRA conference and took 
home two awards of excellence for Special Publication and Campaign – 
Alumni/Fundraising 

 Teresa Burnett, newly appointed SSC Regent attended orientation on campus on 
July 16th  

 Seminole Public Schools recently changed the way concurrent courses are 
counted.  Now when a student takes a concurrent course, the course is weighted 
the same as an AP course at Seminole High School 

 President Reynolds gave the Regents information about the upcoming SSC 
Educational Foundation Golf Tournament to be held on September 13th  

 
VIII. Business  
 

Election of Officers– President Reynolds presented the Board with a section of the 
Board Policy regarding the election of officers and information about current members’ 
terms.  After discussion, Regent Pitts made a motion to elect Regent Curtis Morgan as 
Chair.  Regent Ready seconded this motion.  Roll call was as follows:  Morgan, yes; Pitts, 
yes, Ready, yes; Burnett, yes and Donaho, yes. Others who will serve as officer for the 
coming year are:  Regent Marci Donaho, Vice Chair; and Regent Bryan Cain, Secretary. 
 
Approval of Revision of Board Policy II-1-3 -   President Reynolds presented the Board 
with a copy of Board Policy II-1-3 and recommended revisions to the section of this 
policy that states that Board meetings shall be held on the third Thursday of the month.  
After discussion with Assistant Attorney General Whitney Herzog, President Reynolds 
recommends taking out that portion of the policy.  Regent Morgan made a motion to 
approve the changes to Board Policy II-1-3 as presented and Regent Pitts seconded this 



Minutes 
SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 
July 18, 2024 
Page 4 

motion.  Roll call was as follows:  Morgan, yes; Pitts, yes, Ready, yes; Burnett, yes and 
Donaho, yes. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Regents were presented information concerning one item on the Consent Agenda.  
President Reynolds recommended approval of this routine item.  Regent Morgan made a 
motion to approve the Consent Agenda item and Regent Pitts seconded the motion.  Roll 
call was as follows:  Morgan, yes; Pitts, yes, Ready, yes; Burnett, yes and Donaho, yes. 
 
Consent agenda items included: 
  
• 2024 – 2025 Intercollegiate Sports Accident Insurance Consortium Agreement - 

$21,908 
 

IX. Adjournment 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 1:48 p.m. 
 
 
 
     
 



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

 Education and 
General Fund 

 Auxiliary and 
Restricted Fund 

 Capital 
Projects Fund 

 Payroll 
Withholding 

Fund 
 OKHEEI 

Trust Fund 

 Federal 
Restricted 

Fund 
 CARES Act 

Fund 

 Capital Assets 
and Long-Term 

Debt Fund  Total All Funds 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,268,364            1,296,666              1,982,873        2,135            (5,244)         28,896        (2,800)            -                     5,570,890          
Accounts Receivable, net -                      -                         -                  -                -              -              -                 -                     -                     
Other Accrued Income (63,261)               -                         -                  -                -              -              -                 -                     (63,261)              
Capital Assets, net -                      -                         -                  -                -              -              -                 21,892,056        21,892,056        

Total Assets 2,205,103            1,296,666              1,982,873        2,135            (5,244)         28,896        (2,800)            21,892,056        27,399,685        

Accounts Payable (650)                    76,563                   -                  -                -              -              -                 -                     75,913               
Other Accrued Expenses -                      -                         -                  2,135            -              -              -                 -                     2,135                 

Due To/From  Other Funds -                      -                         -                  -                -              -              -                 -                     -                     

Long-Term Debt -                      -                         -                  -                -              -              -                 11,307,687        11,307,687        

Total Liabilities (650)                    76,563                   -                  2,135            -              -              -                 11,307,687        11,385,736        

Beginning Net Position 2,484,730            626,834                 756,350           -                (5,244)         29,181        (2,800)            4,546,264          8,435,315          
Change in Net Position (278,977)              593,269                 1,226,523        -                -              (285)            -                 6,038,105          7,578,635          

Ending Net Position 2,205,753            1,220,103              1,982,873        -                (5,244)         28,896        (2,800)            10,584,369        16,013,949        

Seminole State College
Combining Statement of Net Assets

As of August 31, 2024

Page 1



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

 Education and 
General Fund 

 Auxiliary and 
Restricted Fund 

 Capital Projects 
Fund 

 Payroll 
Withholding 

Fund 
 OKHEEI Trust 

Fund 
 Federal 

Restricted Fund  CARES Act Fund 

 Capital Assets 
and Long-Term 

Debt Fund  Total All Funds 
Revenues

Tuition and fees, net 412,287$               66,864$               -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     479,150$             
State appropriations  1,159,969              -                       1,505,357            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       2,665,326            
Federal grants and contracts -                         1,272,688            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,272,688            
State and private grants and contracts -                         238,477               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       238,477               
Housing & Food Service -                         203,310               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       203,310               
Bookstore -                         297,783               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       297,783               
Other revenues 209,704                 102,536               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       312,240               

Total operating revenues 1,781,960              2,181,656            1,505,357            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       5,468,973            

Expenditures
Compensation and benefits 1,487,107              631,775               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       2,118,882            
Contractual services 216,460                 221,948               12,398                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       450,805               
Supplies and materials 101,648                 210,993               48,770                 -                       -                       285                      -                       -                       361,696               
Scholarships and fellowships 16,065                   116,320               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       132,385               
Communications 8,994                     1,292                   -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       10,286                 
Depreciation -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Utilities 79,083                   25,682                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       104,765               
Other expenditures 151,581                 380,377               217,666               -                       -                       -                       -                       (6,038,105)           (5,288,481)           

Total Operating Expenses 2,060,937              1,588,387            278,834               -                       -                       285                      -                       (6,038,105)           (2,109,662)           

Operating income (loss) (278,977)                593,269               1,226,523            -                       -                       (285)                     -                       6,038,105            7,578,635            

Transfers from (to) -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Change in Net Position (278,977)                593,269               1,226,523            -                       -                       (285)                     -                       6,038,105            7,578,635            

Seminole State College
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

Page 2



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

 Education and 
General Fund 

 Auxiliary and 
Restricted 

Fund 
 Capital 

Projects Fund 

 Payroll 
Withholding 

Fund 
 OKHEEI 

Trust Fund 

 Federal 
Restricted 

Fund 
 CARES Act 

Fund 

 Capital 
Assets and 
Long-Term 
Debt Fund 

 Total All 
Funds 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,888,940$       484,548$         1,799,249$    2,135$           (5,244)$          29,181$         (2,800)$          -$               5,196,010$    

Change in Net Position (278,977)           593,269           1,226,523      -                 -                 (285)               -                 6,038,105      7,578,635      

Changes not providing (using) cash (341,599)           218,849           (1,042,900)     -                 -                 -                 -                 (6,038,105)     (7,203,754)     

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending 2,268,364$       1,296,666$      1,982,873$    2,135$           (5,244)$          28,896$         (2,800)$          -$               5,570,890$    

Seminole State College
Combining Statement of Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalants

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

Page 3 



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUE

State Appropriations 627,629$             1,159,969$           6,045,148         471,522$              

Tuition 297,671               275,605                2,702,742         97,299                  
Non-Resident Tuition Fees 6,100                   15,236                  650,063            23,402                  
Remedial Course Fee 587                      1,462                    37,832              1,362                    

Tuition 304,358               292,303                3,390,637         122,063                
STEM Academic Excellence Fee 6,270                   10,865                  115,470            4,157                    
LAH Academic Excellence Fee 1,230                   2,782                    47,456              1,708                    
Bus & Ed Academic Excellence Fee 1,162                   3,129                    66,418              2,391                    
Health Science Academic Excellence Fee 75                        306                       12,457              448                       
Social Science Academic Excellence Fee 1,628                   3,030                    49,022              1,765                    
Physical Therapist Assistance Fee -                       728                       3,668                132                       
Technology Service Fee 6,539                   16,492                  261,000            9,396                    
Bus And Ind Additional Fees -                       -                        500                   18                         
Nursing Fee 471                      1,480                    76,062              2,738                    
Laboratory Fees 2,660                   4,969                    70,787              2,548                    
Medical Lab Tech Fee -                       240                       8,776                316                       
Electronic Academic Access Fee 2,801                   6,570                    76,800              2,765                    
Dist Education/Outreach Fee 15,639                 32,989                  306,377            11,030                  

Academic Course Fees 38,474                 83,578                  1,094,793         39,413                  
Late Payment Fees 232                      985                       5,458                196                       
Application For Admission Fees 655                      1,508                    11,225              404                       
Assessment Fee 2,573                   6,054                    86,063              3,098                    
Refund Per Legal Settlement -                       -                        -                        
Ace Testing Fees -                       140                       2,590                93                         
Hybrid Course Fee -                       -                        -                        
Sr Citizens Discount -                       -                        -                        
Enrollment Seminars -                       -                        -                        
Clep Testing Fees -                       -                        190                   7                           
Library Automation Fee 2,021                   5,034                    79,643              2,867                    
Clearing Other Special Enrollment -                       -                        -                    -                        
Records Fee 1,580                   3,744                    57,765              2,080                    
Parking Fees 1,427                   3,396                    27,040              973                       
Student Id Fee 1,016                   2,111                    14,964              539                       
Accident Shield Fee 2,689                   5,553                    97,035              3,493                    
Special Testing Fees 225                      375                       3,350                121                       
International Student Fee -                       273                       8,138                293                       
Compliance Fee 1,726                   4,055                    57,360              2,065                    
Safety Fee 1,362                   3,178                    49,978              1,799                    

Other Student Fees 15,506                 36,405                  500,799            18,029                  

Total Tuition and Fees 358,339               412,287                4,986,229         179,504                

Other Income 110,267               209,704                500,544            18,020                  

Total Revenue 1,096,235            1,781,960             11,531,921       669,045                

EXPENDITURES

Instruction 352,083               872,343                5,672,273         510,505                
Research -                       -                        -                    -                        
Public Service -                       -                        -                    -                        
Academic Support 59,867                 121,137                639,771            57,579                  
Student Services 167,954               319,732                2,049,133         184,422                
Institutional Support 192,272               341,949                2,023,331         182,100                
Physical Plant 242,888               400,211                2,221,864         199,968                
Scholarships and Tuition Waivers (36,486)                5,565                    950,000            950,000                

Total Expenditures 978,577               2,060,937             13,556,372       2,084,573             

Total Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 117,658$             (278,977)               (2,024,451)$      (1,415,528)$          

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Education and General - Statement of Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

BUDGET

Page 4



YEAR
CURRENT TO 

MONTH DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUES
Contractual Food Service 13,600$             26,809$             815,542$           17,126$                
Bookstore 258,721             301,152             1,346,480          20,197                  
Institutional Support 31,915               58,799               631,053             23,980                  
Seminole/Roesler Residential Centers 187,956             205,583             1,073,670          4,295                    
Student Activities 9,914                 23,756               353,477             8,130                    

Total Revenues 502,106             616,099             4,220,222          73,728                  

EXPENDITURES
Contractual Food Service 19,713               21,931               815,542             178                       
Bookstore 115,511             137,853             1,780,188          143,411                
Institutional Support 41,579               60,335               1,093,500          17,496                  
Seminole/Roesler Residential Centers 79,528               188,435             810,733             75,671                  
Student Activities 1,070                 2,138                 139,843             2,237                    

Total Expenditures 257,400             410,692             4,639,806          238,994                

Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 244,706$           205,408$           (419,584)$          (165,265)$             

Seminole State College
Auxiliary Summary Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

BUDGET

Page 5



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Meals revenue 13,600$                   26,809$             800,000$            16,800$            
Other revenue -                          -                     15,542                326                   

Total revenue 13,600                     26,809               815,542              17,126              

Supplies -                          -                     4,826                  1                       
Miscellaneous Expenditures -                          -                     -                      -                    
Contractual Service 18,314                     20,158               800,000              175                   
Professional Services 1,400                       1,773                 10,716                2                       

Total expenditures 19,713                     21,931               815,542              178                   

Net profit (loss) (6,113)$                   4,879$               -$                    16,948$            

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Food Service - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

BUDGET

Page 6 



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Sales revenue 255,985$          297,783$              1,313,375$    19,701$          
Other revenue 2,736                3,369                    33,105.00      497$               

Total revenue 258,721            301,152                1,346,480      20,197            

Purchase For Resale 100,462            109,074                781,500         55,487            

Professional Salaries, F.T. 3,657                7,315                    43,888           7,315              
Classified Salaries, F.T. 5,000                10,000                  60,000           10,000            
Classified Salaries, P.T. -                    -                        -                 -                  
Student Wages -                    -                        -                 -                  
Fringe Benefits 4,802                9,604                    74,000           12,333            

Compensation expendiures 13,459              26,919                  177,888         29,648            

Travel -                    -                        4,375             311                 
Supplies 546                   546                       14,200           1,008              
Miscellaneous Expenditures -                    -                        4,175             296                 
Contractual Service 1,043                1,314                    24,800           1,761              
Sponsorships -                    -                        400                28                   
Postage -                    -                        772,850         54,872            

Other expenditures 1,589                1,860                    820,800         58,277            
Total expenditures 115,511            137,853                1,780,188      143,411          

Net profit (loss) 143,211$          163,299$              (433,708)$      (123,214)$       

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Bookstore Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

BUDGET

Page 7



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUE

Student Service Fee 8,190$                    19,769$               288,042$      10,946            
Infrastructure Fee 9,757                      23,338                 313,283        11,905            

Student Fees 17,947                    43,107                 601,325        22,850            
Other Income-Overpayment 9,220                      9,720                   8,368            318                 
ATM other non-revenue 4,248                      4,248                   8,368            318                 
Refunds / Reimbursements -                          12                        20                 1                     
Interest Income -                          -                       1,484            56                   
Seminar fees -                          -                       -                -                  
Vending maching commissions -                          112                      1,243            47                   
Photocopy revenue -                          -                       -                -                  
Repair and replacemnet, damaged property -                          -                       -                -                  
Haney Center 500                         1,600                   10,245          389                 

Other income 13,968                    15,692                 29,728          1,130              

Total Revenue 31,915                    58,799                 631,053        23,980            

EXPENDITURES

Professional Services 1,350                      26,834                 145,000        2,320              
Personnel expenditures 1,350                      55,243                 145,000        2,320              

Travel -                          -                       1,000            16                   
Supplies 1,657                      1,657                   4,500            72                   
Miscellaneous Expenditures 575                         1,430                   35,000          560                 
Contractual Service 421                         915                      5,000            80                   
Housing and book scholarships 37,108                    622                      900,000        14,400            
Haney Center -                          -                       3,000            48                   

Total Expenditures 41,579                    60,335                 1,093,500     17,496            

Total Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (9,664)$                   (1,536)$                (462,447)$     6,484              

Seminole State College
Institutional Support- Statement of Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

ACTUAL BUDGET

Page 8



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Rental revenue - Dorms 186,565$         202,433           1,055,388$      4,222                    
Other revenue 1,391               3,150               18,282             73                         

Total revenue 187,956           205,583           1,073,670        4,295                    

Professional Salaries, F.T. 3,657.33          7,315               41,598             6,933                    
Professional Services 866.79             1,300               -                   -                        
Professional Services 210.00             1,505               11,000             946.00                  
Fringe Benefits 2,246.42          4,460               32,135             5,355.83               

Personnel expenditures 6,981               14,580             84,733             13,235                  
Travel -                   -                   1,500               129                       
Supplies 5,983               6,566               61,300             5,272                    
Miscellaneous Expenditures -                   -                   3,500               301                       
Lease Payments 45,452             136,356           500,000           43,000                  
Contractual Service 5,207               6,322               28,700             2,468                    
Utilities 15,905             24,611             131,000           11,266                  

Other expenditures 72,547             173,855           726,000           62,436                  
Total expenditures 79,528             188,435           810,733           75,671                  

Net profit (loss) 108,428$         17,148             262,937$         (71,376)$               

ACTUAL BUDGET

Seminole State College
Housing - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

Page 9



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Student activity fee 8,839$                     21,211$                317,770$         7,309$               
Cultural & recreation fee 1,075                       2,546                    35,707             821                    

Total Revenue 9,914                       23,756                  353,477           8,130                 

Athletic Administration -                           -                        -                   -                     
National Tournaments -                           1,068                    40,000             640                    
Golf-Women -                           -                        4,544               73                      
Golf-Men -                           -                        4,544               73                      
Womens Soccer -                           -                        12,500             200                    
Men's Basketball -                           -                        6,971               112                    
Women's Basketball 623                          623                       6,971               112                    
Volleyball -                           -                        11,000             176                    
Baseball -                           -                        15,181             243                    
Softball -                           -                        13,632             218                    
Student Government -                           -                        12,500             200                    
Livestock Judging Team -                           -                        -                   -                     
PLC 447                          447                       12,000             192                    
SSC Aggie (AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     
Phi Theta Kappa (AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     
NASA (AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     
Student Nurse Association(AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     

Total Expenditures 1,070                       2,138                    139,843           2,237                 

Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 8,844$                     21,619$                213,634$         5,892$               

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Student Activities - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

BUDGET

Page 10



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Revenue Expenditures Net

PELL 40,845$                  34,373$             6,472$                 
PELL Recovery -                         -                     -                      
SEOG 1,500                     1,500                 -                      
Direct Loans 62,571                   48,574               13,997                 
Student loan repayment -                         -                     -                      
College Work Study 4,019                     4,019                 -                      
SSC Foundation -                         -                     -                      
Private Scholarships 113,349                  36,750               76,598                 
Private Loans 21,322                   -                     21,322                 
Cherokee Student Grants 10,000                   -                     10,000                 
Sac & Fox Student Grants 7,600                     -                     7,600                   
Creek Tribe Student Grants -                         -                     -                      
Shawnee Tribe Student Grants 6,374                     1,759                 4,615                   
Choctaw Tribe Student Grants 7,189                     1,750                 5,439                   
Citizen Pottawatomie Stud Grnt 8,373                     4,123                 4,250                   
Chickasaw Tribe Stdt Grants 35,638                   1,288                 34,350                 
OHLAP 1,605                     35,203               (33,598)               
Misc Indial Tribal Grants 7,880                     2,180                 5,700                   
Oklahoma Tuition Aid Grant -                         -                     -                      

Subtotal Financial Aid 328,265                  171,519             156,746               
Title III Engaging Students in Science -                         -                     -                      
Ub Math/Science #2 153,713                  136,501             17,211                 
Ub Math/Science #1 150,646                  141,642             9,003                   
Upward Bound #2 131,312                  122,036             9,277                   
Upward Bound #1 196,749                  182,780             13,969                 
Talent Search West 51,408                   50,293               1,116                   
Talent Search Central 70,381                   70,332               50                        
Dream Catcher Gear Up 157,875                  86,058               71,817                 
STEM Student Support 44,180                   43,826               354                      
Student Support Serices 54,117                   52,757               1,360                   
NASNTI Grant 132,049                  50,071               81,978                 
NASNTI Grant -                         -                     -                      
Scholars for Excellence 13,551                   12,391               1,161                   
NASNTI Grant Supplemental -                         7,544                 (7,544)                 
CONGRESSIONAL FUNDS - NURSING -                         5,198                 (5,198)                 
TANF 41,695                   17,854               23,841                 
TANF - Ada -                         11,245               (11,245)               
Carl Perkins -                         -                     -                      

Subtotal Federal Grants 1,197,677               990,526             207,150               
Care Bears 74                          -                     74                        
Nursing Student'S -                         -                     -                      
Upward Bound #2 Fund Raiser 60                          -                     60                        
Upward Bound M/S Fund Raiser 180                        -                     180                      
Ub Ms #2 Fund Raiser -                         -                     -                      
Upward Bound #1 Fundraiser 90                          -                     90                        

Subtoal Other Restricted 404                        -                     404                      

Total 1,526,346$             1,162,046$        364,300$             

Seminole State College
Restricted Funds - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

Page 11



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Revenue Expenditures Net

VA REPORT FEE -                         1,304                 (1,304)                 
FACULTY SENATE 270                        -                     270                      
UB #1 SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 5,854                     -                     5,854                   
PHI THETA KAPPA 228                        -                     228                      
UBMS SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 3,753                     -                     3,753                   
UB M/S #2 SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 4,804                     5,000                 (196)                    
UB2 SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 4,065                     -                     4,065                   
RESIDENTIAL DEPOSITS 7,190                     -                     7,190                   
PROFESSIONAL STAFF COUNCIL 300                        1,000                 (700)                    
CLASSIFIED STAFF ASSOCIATION 50                          -                     50                        
OTHER ORGANIZATIONS AND ACTIVITIES 12,698                   8,346                 4,352                   

39,211$                  15,650$             23,561$               

Seminole State College
Campus Organizations - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through August 31, 2024

Page 12



Austin M. Bogle
austinbogle24@gmail.com                                                                                    2835 N Garry St
(417) 429-3134                                                                                            Springfield, MO 65803
________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Qualifications Summary

With 6 years of experience on a collegiate coaching staff, I am qualified to assist in all areas of running a 

competitive program. I am especially strong in the areas of recruiting, academic support, player 

development, scouting, and operational/administrative tasks. I have learned from multiple high major 

coaches, and understand the work it takes to run a successful program. 

EDUCATION
Utah Valley University                                                                                                                Orem, Utah
Bachelor of Science in Marketing                                                                                                   May, 2021
GPA: 3.9

RECENT EXPERIENCE     
University of Hawaii                                                                                           Honolulu, Hawaii
Graduate Assistant/Director of Ops                                                                                June 2023 - Present

● Assisted with raising over $300,000 through fundraising efforts. 
● Oversaw academics leading to highest team GPA in current Head Coach’s tenure (3.11). 
● Conducted training sessions for player development and participated in on-court drills.
● Composed game schedules and organized team travel arrangements.
● Purchased and maintained team equipment/gear. 

 
Southern Utah University                                                                                                  Cedar City, Utah
Special Assistant to the Head Coach                                                                     August 2022 - June 2023

● Created and designed recruiting graphics through Adobe Photoshop and Canva.
● Managed team social media accounts and worked with the marketing team for game promotions. 
● Film breakdown in Sportscode and Synergy.
● Oversaw team of student managers for practice and game day preparations 

Northeastern State University                                                                                  Tahlequah, Oklahoma
Men’s Basketball Assistant Coach                                                                           July 2021 - August 2022

● Assisted Head Coach with organization of practice and on-court instruction.
● Recruited and met with potential student-athletes to discuss experience and goals.
● Scouted opposing teams and developed in-game strategies.
● Created analytic reports to aid the Head Coach in decision making.

Utah Valley University                                                                                                                Orem, Utah
Men’s Basketball Student Manager                                                                   September 2018 - July 2021

● Rebounded for players at all hours of the day (5am, 12am, etc).
● Solved player issues regarding equipment and transportation. 
● Executed and managed game day operations. 



 
Tuesday, August 6th, 2024 

 

Athletic Director Sewell, 

Please accept this letter as a formal notice of my resignation from my position as head men’s 

basketball coach at Seminole State College, effective immediately. I am resigning to pursue 

another opportunity in coaching. 

I am extremely grateful for the opportunity that you provided me to be the head basketball coach 

of such a storied program. Many college basketball coaches go their entire careers and never get 

the chance to be a head coach – I am forever indebted to you and Seminole State College for 

hiring me and allowing me to lead the Trojan basketball program.  

I believe we made great progress as a program over the last year. I am proud of the strides our 

student-athletes made both on and off the court and think the trajectory of Seminole State 

basketball is extremely high.  

I enjoyed getting to work for you and think you have the unique ability as a leader to understand 

the details and happenings of each program, while still allowing coaches to do their jobs and not 

micromanage them. I have never doubted that you always have the best interest of Seminole 

State College athletics at heart. The culture that you have shaped amongst coaches and programs 

at SSC makes it a fun and exciting place to work. 

I appreciate the leadership of the institution – specifically President Reynolds for her devote 

support of athletics. I also took pleasure in getting to work in a community where the success of 

the local junior college athletics programs mattered, and their support matched that.  

I look forward to following Seminole State athletics from afar and will do everything I can to 

help with this transition. 

Respectfully, 

 

Lucas Hunter 

Head Coach  

Seminole State College Men’s Basketball 

L.hunter@sscok.edu 

 

 



























WHY WE WORK AT SSC
Based on Employee Climate Survey Report - Spring 2024

67%

82%

84%

97%

would recommend 
working at SSC to a 
friend or colleague.

are satisfied with 
their benefits.

agree their job 
requirements are 
reasonable.

believe SSC values 
its community 
beyond campus.

Percentages based on completed
 employee surveys.

Most Popular Reasons for Working at SSC

Holidays/Time Off • 35-Hour Work Weeks 

• Family Atmosphere • Supportive Co-workers 

• Benefits/Insurance • Fridays Off During the Summer 

• Helping Students Achieve Their Goals

Employee Quotes on Why They Work at SSC

“I have never worked in 
such a supportive and 

kind place.”

“Recent salary increase, 
good working environ-
ment, short commute.”

“Better benefits than 
other local insitutions of 

higher education.”

“Amazing leadership, 
sense of community, sup-

port from co-workers.”

“The heartbeat of the 
campus is its students. 

They are what keeps me 
motivated.”

“I love that SSC does so 
many good things for 

the community.”

Seminole State College empowers people for academic 
success, personal development, and lifelong learning.



August 27, 2024

Ms. Lana Reynolds
President
Seminole State College
P.O. Box 351
2701 Boren Blvd.
Seminole, OK 74818-0351

Dear President Reynolds:

This letter serves to inform you that Seminole State College (the institution) has successfully completed its 
Open Pathway Assurance Review with no recommended monitoring.

The institution will not receive an official action letter from the Higher Learning Commission (HLC) 
Institutional Actions Council. This letter serves as your confirmation that this review is complete.

In two weeks, this action will be added to the Institutional Status and Requirements (ISR) Report, a 
resource for the institution to review and manage information regarding its accreditation relationship. Chief 
Executive Officers and Accreditation Liaison Officers may download the ISR Report in Canopy at 
https://canopy.hlcommission.org.

The next steps in the institution’s ongoing accreditation relationship are to begin work on a Quality Initiative 
project and to prepare for the institution’s comprehensive evaluation in Year 10, which will include an 
action regarding the institution’s Reaffirmation of Accreditation.

If you have any questions, please contact Jamie Stanesa, your HLC staff liaison.

Sincerely,
Higher Learning Commission

cc: Jessica Isaacs, Accreditation Liaison Officer
William W. Tammone, Team Chair
Peer Review Team Members
Jamie Stanesa, HLC Staff Liaison

https://canopy.hlcommission.org/




INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: LANA REYNOLDS, PRESIDENT 

FROM: MELANIE RINEHART, VPFGE 
DR. BILL KNOWLES, VPASA 

SUBJECT: RFP #202508-01 SSC MOTORPOOL SECURED PARKING LOT  

DATE: 9/13/2024 

 

There were 2 bids received associated with RPF #202508-01. Based on the needs of the 
college and after our consultation with Director of Maintenance, Clint Robertson, we 
recommend that Seminole State College select the following bids: 

Dave Haynie LLC for SSC Motor Pool Secured Parking Lot for the amount of 
$189,300. 

You will find the full bid packages attached. A chart noting all bids and the reasons for 
the decision are documented below. 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Melanie Rinehart 
Vice President of Finance, Grants and Enrollment 

The following chart presents the bid companies and the amounts of their bid: 

 

Dave Haynie, LLC was the lowest bid and included all of the needed components. The 
“Note 3B” option is included in the documented price above. This bid does exclude the 
security camera, but that was an option on the RFP. It is unclear if the security camera 
was included in the Scott + Reid bid but the bid from Dave Haynie is still significantly less 
for the main components of the RFP. 

Dave Haynie, LLC 189,300.00$ 
Scott + Reid 289,430.00$ 



























INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: LANA REYNOLDS, PRESIDENT 

FROM: MELANIE RINEHART, VPFGE 
DR. BILL KNOWLES, VPASA 

SUBJECT: RFP #202508-02 SSC SIDEWALK AND DRAINAGE REPAIR PROJECT 

DATE: 9/13/2024 

There were 2 bids received associated with RPF #202508-02. Based on the needs of the 
college and after our consultation with Director of Maintenance, Clint Robertson, we 
recommend that Seminole State College select the following bid: 

Dave Haynie LLC for SSC Sidewalk and Drainage Repair Project for the amount of 
$363,975. 

You will find the full bid packages. The chart documented the reasons for the decision 
are below. 

Sincerely, 

Melanie Rinehart 
Vice President of Finance, Grants and Enrollment 

The following chart presents the bid companies and the amounts of their bid: 

Dave Haynie, LLC was the lowest bid and included all of the needed components. 

Dave Haynie, LLC 363,975.00$ 
Scott + Reid 453,474.00$ 



























 
POLICY NUMBER:  II-4-19  

 
TITLE: 

LEAVES AND ABSENCES: ALL FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES 
 
 
I. Absence Reports/Time Sheets 
 
Employees are required to document the amount of time worked in accordance with established 
procedures.  All full-time employees must file a Leave of Absence Form when absent from 
work.  Whenever possible, a request for leave form must be completed in advance and approved 
by a supervisor prior to earned leave is taken. 
 
Faculty Absenteeism 
 
Any instructor who is unable to meet a scheduled class for any reason must contact the 
appropriate Division Chair as far in advance as possible.  The instructor and Division Chair will 
make arrangements for classroom activities, or in case of emergency notify students, when 
possible, that class will not meet. 

 
II. Annual Leave 
 
A. Each full-time twelve-month employee is eligible for annual leave as follows: 

1. 1 to 3 years of employment – 10 days 
2. 4 to 9 years of employment – 15 days 
3. 10+ years of employment    – 18 20 days 

B. Additional Annual Leave information. 
1. On July 1 of each year,the annual hire date anniversary employees are granted annual 

leave earned the previous fiscal year. 
2. Annual leave will not be granted prior to being earned. 
3. Employees may accumulate up to twenty annual leave days. 
4. Annual leave days in excess of twenty hours on June 30annual hire date will be 

forfeited.  The President may extend the excess leave on an individual basis. 
5. Employees completing their first partial year of employment will have their annual 

leave time pro-rated based on the number of months worked by June 30.  The initial 
employment date will be rounded to the nearest first of the month. 

65. Annual leave may not be earned while on approved leave without pay, FMLA leave 
without pay, drawing disability pay, or drawing Workers’ Compensation benefits. 

76. The College reserves the right to require employees to take annual leave at certain 
times of the year or in the case of a College emergency. 

87. Employees who terminate employment will be compensated for any earned and 
unused annual leave plus pro-rated annual leave since July 1. 

 
 

 



 
 

III. Personal Business Leave 
 
The College grants personal business leave upon hire to full-time 12-month employees to 
prevent a loss of pay during certain types of absences.  For new full-time employees, personal 
business leave will be pro-rated the first year, based on hire date.  It is intended for such reasons 
as attending a funeral of someone outside the immediate family, conducting legal business, and 
similar matters of a personal nature.  Use of personal leave is limited to one day at a time unless 
prior approval has been granted by the President. Personal leave cannot be used on consecutive 
days even if only a partial day is used. It is not intended as additional vacation time or sick leave.  
Approval for personal leave must be obtained in advance from the appropriate administrative 
officer.  Exceptions may be granted by the President in the case of an emergency. 
 
Each full-time twelve-month employee is granted the equivalent of five (5) working days of 
personal leave on July 1 their annual hire date of each fiscal year.  Unused time does not 
accumulate and is not paid upon terminationat the end of employment. 
 
Personal Leave – Faculty 
 
Each full-time instructor shall beis granted a maximum of  the equivalent of two (2) working 
days of personal leave each academic yearon their annual hire date each year.  Personal leave 
days may be taken with pay, and may be used at the faculty member’s discretion, and will be 
non-cumulative from year to year.Unused time does not accumulate and is not paid upon the end 
of employment. 
 
Personal leave beyond the established two days must be requested from the Vice President of 
Academic and Student Affairs, and if granted, full pay will be deducted from the instructor’s 
salary for each day absent.  Each faculty member requesting person leave must meet all assigned 
responsibilities at SSC before leaves of absence will be granted. 

 
IV. Court/Jury Duty Leave 
 
An employee who is granted a leave of absence for jury duty shall be entitled to such duty with 
full pay.  A copy of the subpoena must be submitted to Human Resources prior to the start of the 
leave.  An employee, who is not selected for jury duty after reporting each of the required days, 
must return to work for the remainder of the day. 
 
No deduction in salary will be made if an employee must appear in court when subpoenaed as a 
witness by the Federal Government, State of Oklahoma, or political subdivision thereof.  Court 
cases involving an employee’s personal business shall be taken as personal business leave, 
annual leave, compensatory time, or leave without pay. 
 
V. Family and Medical Leave (FMLA) 
 
Seminole State College will provide up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to “eligible” 
employees for certain family and medical reasons.  The twelve weeks leave does not have to be 



continuous but begins and is determined at the first date an employee takes FMLA leave (paid or 
unpaid) for a specific qualifying health condition. 
 

  
The FMLA entitles eligible employees to take up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave in a 
12-month period for specified family and medical reasons, or for any “qualifying exigency” 
arising out of the fact that a covered military member is on active duty, or has been notified of an 
impending call or order to active duty, in support of a contingency operation.  The FMLA also 
allows eligible employees to take up to 26 weeks of job-protected leave in a “single 12-month 
period” to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness.  
 
A. Eligible employees.  To be eligible for FMLA leave, an employee must have 12 months 

of cumulative service with the College and at least 1,250 hours of service during the 12-
month period prior to the date leave is to begin.   

 
B. Annual leave/Other paid time off. 

1. The College may require or an employee may opt to substitute annual leave or other 
paid time off during FMLA leave. 

2. Employees on leave for their own serious health condition who are receiving 
workers’ compensation or state disability insurance benefits cannot be required or 
allowed to substitute annual leave or other paid time off if the College wishes to 
count the time against the employee’s FMLA entitlement. 

 
C. Qualifying leave.  Leave may be requested for the following reasons: 

1. To care for a new child upon birth or placement for adoption or foster care.  Leave for 
this reason must be concluded within 12 months of the birth or placement; 

2. To care for the employee’s child, parent or spouse who has a serious health condition; 
3. When due to the employee’s own serious health condition, the employee is unable to 

perform the essential functions of the job or needs medical treatment. 
 

D. Serious health condition.  A serious health condition is defined as an illness, injury, 
impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves either: 
1. In-patient care (i.e., overnight stay) in a hospital, hospice or residential medical care 

facility or any subsequent treatment in connection with such in-patient care; or, 
2. Continuing treatment by a health care provider. 
 

E. Continuing treatment is defined as: 
1. A period of incapacity requiring absence from work, school or other regular daily 

activities of more than three consecutive calendar days and any subsequent treatment 
or period of incapacity relating to the same condition that also includes either 

a) Treatment two or more times by or under the supervision of a health care 
provider or 

b) Treatment by a health care provider one time with a continuing regimen of 
treatment; 

2. Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or prenatal care, or treatment for a chronic 
serious health condition, such as asthma or diabetes, which require periodic visits to a 



health care provider and may involve occasional episodes of incapacity; or 
3. Incapacity that is permanent or long-term due to a condition for which treatment may 

not be effective, such as terminal cancer. 
 

F. Advance notice and medical certification.  An employee may be required to provide 
advance leave notice and medical certification of necessity.  Leave may be denied if 
requirements are not met. 

 
1. 30 days advance notice.  If the need for leave is foreseeable, the employee must 

provide notice at least 30 days prior to the commencement of the leave.  In cases of 
unforeseeable need, notice must be provided as soon as practicable – typically within 
one or two working days of learning of the need for leave. 
 

2. Medical certification.  When leave is requested due to a serious health condition, the 
employee shall provide medical certification of the condition in writing.  This is true 
whether leave is for the employee’s health condition or to care for an ill family 
member. 

a) If leave is planned, the employee shall provide the certification before the 
leave begins.  

b) If the leave is not foreseeable, the employee shall provide certification within 
15 calendar days after the request for leave, or as soon thereafter as reasonably 
possible. 

c) If an employee fails to provide certification in a timely manner, leave can be 
re-designated as some other qualifying leave or as an unexcused absence, in 
accordance with the College’s policies. 

d) If the College has reason to doubt the validity of a medical certification for the 
employee’s own serious health condition, it may obtain second opinion at the 
College’s expense. 

e) If the opinions of the employee’s and SSC’s designated health care providers 
differ, the employer may require the employee to obtain certification from a 
third health care provider, again at the employer’s expense.  This third opinion 
shall be final and binding.  The third health care provider must be approved 
jointly by the employer and the employee.   

f) Medical certification must be obtained using form WH-380 provided by the 
U. S. Department of Labor.  The medical certification must include at a 
minimum: 
1) the date the serious health condition commenced, and the health care 

provider’s best judgment of the probable duration of the condition; 
2) the diagnosis; 
3) a brief statement of the prescribed regimen of treatment; and 
4) whether inpatient hospitalization is required. 

g) The College may request re-certification for the continuation of leave at 
reasonable intervals (no more often than every 30 days). 

 
G. College notification. 

1. In order to count time off toward an employee’s FMLA leave entitlement, the College 



must provide an employee with notice in writing that leave will be counted as FMLA 
leave, provided that the College knows that a qualifying event exists. 

2. Under the FMLA, such notice should generally be provided to the employee within 
two business days after receipt by the College of the Request for FMLA leave. 

3. The College can designate leave as FMLA qualifying even if the employee does not 
request it, if the College has sufficient information to determine that the leave is 
FMLA qualifying.  In such cases, the College can explain to an employee that 
designation is for the employee’s own protection – to guarantee reinstatement and to 
ensure that absences will be excused. 

4. If the College’s notice is late, the College may not count the leave taken prior to 
providing the notice towards an employee’s 12-week entitlement. 

5. The College may designate FMLA leave retroactively if  
a) The College did not know the reason for the leave at the time the leave was 

taken but makes the designation within two business days after the employee 
returns to work; or 

b) The College has preliminarily designated the leave as FMLA qualifying and 
notified the employee but is awaiting medical certification. 

 
H. Jobs benefits and protection.   

1. Health coverage.   
a) During FMLA leave Seminole State College will continue to maintain the employee’s 

payment for coverage under group health, dental, life, and disability until such time as 
the employee returns to work, resigns, fails to return to work after 12 weeks, or 
exhausts FMLA leave.   

b) If the employee carries coverage for dependents, the College may elect to cancel 
coverage if the employee’s premium payments for dependents are not received within 
30 days of the due date.  Should this occur, College staff will notify the employee 15 
days before the employee’s dependents are dropped from coverage for failure to pay. 

2. Oklahoma Teachers’ Retirement under paid or unpaid FMLA will be considered as 
continuous for purposes of eligibility and vesting for retirement plans. 

3. Annual leave and sick leave will continue to accrue under paid FMLA leave but will 
not accrue under unpaid FMLA leave. 

4. The maximum lengths of time an employee may be absent from work while  
 his or her job is protected under the FMLA policy is 12 weeks.  This is the case 

whether the leave is paid or unpaid or a combination of the two. 
 

I. Return to Work 
A physician’s medical release must be presented to the College by an employee who has 
been on FMLA leave before he/she can return to work. 

  
J. Job Restoration 

1. Upon return from FMLA leave, an employee will be restored to the employee’s 
original job, or to an equivalent job with equivalent pay, benefits, and other terms and 
conditions of employment. 

2. The employee’s use of FMLA leave will not result in the loss of any employment 
benefit that the employee earned or was entitled to before using FMLA leave. 



3. Under specified and limited circumstances where restoration to employment will 
cause substantial and grievous economic injury to operations, SSC may refuse to 
reinstate “key” employees after using FMLA leave during which health coverage was 
maintained.  (A “key” employee is a salaried “eligible” employee who is among the 
highest paid ten percent of employees within 75 miles of the work site.)  In order to 
refuse reinstatement, SSC will: 

a. notify the employee of his/her status as a “key” employee in response to the 
employee’s notice of intent to take FMLA leave; 

b. notify the employee as soon as the employer decides it will deny job 
restoration, and explain the reasons for this decision; 

c. offer the employee a reasonable opportunity to return to work from FMLA 
leave after giving this notice; and 

d. make a final determination as to whether reinstatement will be denied at the 
end of the leave period if the employee then requests restoration. 

 
VI. Sick Leave 
 
All full-time employees are entitled to sick leave at a rate of one and one-quarter days per month 
or a total of fifteen days for a complete year of service.  Unused days may be accumulated up to 
200 working days.  An employee may use earned sick leave up to one-hundred-twenty 
consecutive workdays at his/her regular rate of pay in any given year.  If an employee anticipates 
being gone for more than one-hundred-twenty consecutive workdays the employee should visit 
with the Human Resources Office about applying for long-term disability or other payroll 
arrangements.   
 
Employees working full-time but less than twelve consecutive months will receive sick leave on 
a pro-rata basis. 
 
A. Sick Leave and One’s Immediate Family 

Personnel may use sick leave time for illness or injury in the immediate family.  The term 
“immediate family” shall be understood to include only the spouse,  
brothers, sisters, sons, daughters, grandchildren, father, mother, father-in-law, mother-in-
law, or a relative who makes his or her home permanently in the household of the 
employee.   
 

 
B. Additional Sick Leave Information 

1. The employee, or a representative, shall give notification of absence due to personal 
illness or injury, in accordance with the sick leave policy, to the appropriate 
supervisor at the beginning of each workday, unless this is not possible due to 
incapacitation.  Failure to give such notice may be considered an abuse of sick leave 
and may be cause for disciplinary action.  Sick leave may be denied for failure to 
notify the appropriate supervisor within a reasonable time frame. 

2. The College may require employees to furnish satisfactory proof of illness or 
disabling injury in chronic or unusual cases before paid sick leave is approved.  In so 
doing, the supervisor may require the staff member to provide a written statement by 



a qualified, licensed medical practitioner certifying that the employee is ill or 
incapacitated.  The information must include medical facts which support that 
certification, any suggested alterations to the staff member’s regular duties (including 
ability to perform essential functions), the anticipated length of the illness or other 
incapacitating condition, as well as other information which may be necessary to 
determine whether granting sick leave is appropriate may be required.   

3.   In addition, the supervisor may require the staff member to provide periodic re-
certification from a licensed medical practitioner for continued use of sick leave.  In 
rare cases of continuing or excessive use of sick leave, a second opinion may be 
requested of a doctor chosen by SSC.  Falsification of information regarding any sick 
leave may be cause for termination of employment. 

4. Unless otherwise authorized, a physician’s medical release must be presented to the 
employee’s supervisor by an employee who has been on leave for more than 5 
consecutive days before he/she can return to work. 

5. Sick leave may not be earned by an employee during leave of absence without pay, 
FMLA leave without pay, or suspension. 

6. Sick leave will be granted to personnel who become ill or suffer disabling injury 
while on annual leave provided such illness or disabling injury be verified by medical 
certification from a licensed practitioner. 

7. There will be no salary reduction or sick leave charged for absences related to the 
death in the immediate family unless the absence exceeds five working days. 

8. Personnel who resign or who are terminated from College employment shall forfeit 
all unused sick leave. 

9. An employee may request documentation of accrued sick leave for the Oklahoma 
Teachers’ Retirement System.  

10. The President may approve a transfer of accrued sick leave of a terminated employee 
if they fall within the following as a state employee.  State employees who are 
terminated from their employment may be eligible to have sick leave accrued at the 
time of termination of employment restored if they return to state employment, 
provided that the re-employment occurs within two years and they are eligible to 
accrue sick leave before the two years expire.  (74-840-2.20)   

 
 
C. Extended Sick Leave 
 
Any employee who is on approved leave in excess of one week (five working days) due to an 
illness or injury will be placed on medical leave of absence. Upon notification from an 
employee, a supervisor will review the circumstances with the assistance of the Office of 
Human Resources. If it is determined that a formal Medical Leave is required, the supervisor 
will submit a written request for Medical Leave to the Office of Human Resources.  The 
length of this leave will be paid in accordance with his/her combined accumulated sick leave, 
annual leave (unused and pro-rated), compensatory time, and personal leave. When the 
accumulated leave time has been exhausted, the employee will be placed on leave without pay 
unless eligible for shared sick leave and shared leave is available.  
 
While a physician’s certificate evidencing illness or disability is not required each time an 



employee does not report for duty, the College reserves the right to require such a certificate 
from the employee’s physician. If the illness is prolonged, the Human Resources office must be 
provided with a doctor’s statement on a monthly basis so that work may be planned.  If it 
becomes necessary for the employee to request leave of absence without pay due to prolonged 
illness, the College may request that the employee continue to pay the monthly premium for the 
employee’s group medical insurance. If the employee wishes to continue employee paid 
dependent coverage, he/she must make arrangements with the business office to pay the monthly 
premium. 
 
 
The employee who has been on Medical Leave must provide a physician’s release to the 
College before he/she may return to work.  A full-time employee’s job may be protected by 
the FMLA when he/she is on an approved extended Medical Leave. Failure to return to work 
on the next scheduled workday following the end of the period (or earlier, if released by a 
physician) may result in the employee’s termination from College employment unless 
Medical Leave is extended by the appropriate Vice President. 
 
VII.   Bereavement Leave 

It is the policy of SSC to ensure state employees that must be off work due to the death of an 
immediate family member for time lost due to the death of the family member.   

If an employee is absent from work due to the death of a member of his/her immediate family, 
he/she will be paid for time lost at regular rate from his/her regular scheduled shift up to a 
maximum of five (5) workdays. Leave for full time employees must begin within ten (10) 
calendar days of the date of death of the family member or the date of the funeral. Time may be 
extended by use of vacation, personal, or sick leave with approval of the employee's supervisor. 

For purposes of bereavement leave, immediate family is defined as follows: 

Employees - spouse or significant other ("significant other" is defined to mean one who 
stands in place of a spouse and who resides with the employee), child, stepchild, grandchild, 
parent, stepparent, grandparent, great-grandparent, brother, sister, step-sibling, mother-in-
law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law or legal 
guardian or other person who stands in the place of a parent (in loco parentis).  

Upon his/her return, the employee will submit a Request for Leave form to his/her immediate 
supervisor for taking bereavement leave and may be requested to attach supporting 
documentation. 

VIII. Abandonment of Position 

An employee who has failed to report to work for three consecutive workdays without notifying 
his/her supervisor will be considered to have voluntarily resigned his/her position. 

 



IX. Military Leave 
 
All officers and employees of the state, or a subdivision thereof, or a municipality therein, who 
are members, either officers or enlisted men/women of the Reserve Corps of the Army, the 
Navy, the Marine Corps, the Coast Guard, the Woman’s Auxiliary Corps, or any other 
component of the Armed Forces of the United States, shall, when ordered by the proper authority 
to active duty or service, be entitled to a leave of absence from such civil employment for the 
period of such active service without loss of status or efficiency rating and without loss of pay 
during the first twenty (20) calendar days of such leave of absence during any federal fiscal year.  
Neither the state, or a subdivision thereof nor a municipality therein, shall be required to pay an 
officer or employee for more than twenty (20) calendar days of such leave of absence in any 
twelve-month period.  
 
A. Employees must secure approval of military leave by the College prior to the employee 

commencing duty assignments.  To obtain approval, the employee must submit a copy of 
the official military duty orders to the Human Resources Office. 

B. The College will continue to pay the employee’s group health, dental, and life and 
disability insurance premiums while the employee is on paid Military Leave provided 
evidence is presented to Human Resources Office that the employee is not covered while 
on leave. 

C. Annual leave and sick leave will continue to accrue under paid Military Leave but will 
not accrue under unpaid Military Leave. 

 
X. Insurance Coverage while on Leave 
 
While on an approved paid leave of absence or disability, the College will continue to pay the 
monthly premiums for the College-paid portion of group medical insurance, dental insurance, 
disability, and life insurance.  Monthly premiums will not be paid while an employee is on 
unpaid leave of absence, on military leave beyond twenty calendar days a year, or drawing 
workers’ compensation.  Employees carrying optional coverage must make arrangements 
through the Payroll Office to make monthly payments for those policies they wish to continue.  
 
 
 
XI. Administrative Leave 
 
Administrative leave with or without pay may be granted by the President, or his or her designee, 
when it is determined to be in the College’s best interest that an employee not return to work for 
a specified period of time or for designated emergency closings of the College due to inclement 
weather, natural disaster, pandemic situations, or other events as determined by the President.  
 
Time approved as administrative leave will not be charged to an employee’s leave balance. 
Employees who are not eligible for benefits, will be paid only for time worked and are not 
eligible for administrative leave.  Benefits eligible employees are eligible to receive 
administrative leave with pay. In the event of weather conditions, or disaster in which the 
President does not grant administrative leave, employees may use earned annual leave if 
approved. 



 
When administrative offices are closed, or campus services suspended, there may still be a few 
employees who are required to be on the job due to the nature of their work assignment.  These 
special work assignments must be approved by area vice presidents. 
 
In such stated situations that may affect campus operations, faculty may be asked to move to 
other methods of course delivery as deemed necessary and as approved by the Vice President for 
Academic Affairs. 
 
XII. Professional Leave 
 
Employees shall be entitled to attend professional meetings required by their positions.  Requests 
to attend such meetings shall be made through the appropriate administrative channels. 

 
XIII. Shared Leave 
  
The Leave Sharing Program provides a means for employees to donate paid leave to a fellow 
College employee who is eligible for and requires donated leave due to an extraordinary or 
catastrophic illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition for either the 
employee or an immediate family member, and which has caused or may cause the employee 
to take leave without pay or terminate employment.   
  
For the purposes of this policy, “relative of the employee” shall be limited to the spouse, 
child, stepchild, grandchild, grandparent, stepparent, or parent of the employee; “household 
members” means those persons who reside in the same home, who have reciprocal duties to 
and do provide financial support for one another (This term shall include foster children and 
legal wards even if they do not live in the household.); “severe or extraordinary” means 
extreme or life threatening; “state employee” means a permanent full-time employee with one 
(1) year or more continuous service with the state; “terminal” means likely to result in death 
within two (2) calendar years.  
The President, or his/her designee, shall determine the amount of donated leave an employee 
may receive and authorize to use, as outlined in “§74-840-2.23 – State leave sharing program.   
 
 
 
DATE OF ADOPTION: June 22, 2000 LEGAL REFERENCE: 
REVIEW DATE(S): October 27, 2011     Family and Medical Leave Act of 
 October 25, 2012 1993 (FMLA) and O.S. 1989 
 October 21, 2021 Supplement 2 Title 72 Soldiers 
 July 20, 2023 and Sailors & §74-840-2.23.   State  
 January 18, 2024 leave sharing   program 
 September 24, 2024     
 
RELATED ADMINISTRATIVE RULES AND REGULATIONS:    
    
    

tel:74-840-2.23
tel:74-840-2.23







	9-24-24 Special Meeting Agenda
	July 2024 Minutes
	August 2024 Financials
	President's Report
	Bogle Resume
	Hunter Resignaton
	Lee Resume
	Ryan Resume
	Why We Work At SSC
	HLC Letter
	OSRHE Early College Approval
	Item A - SSC Motor Pool Parking Lot Bid
	Item B - Sidewalk and Drainage Repair Bid
	Item C - Proposed Changed to Board Policy II-4-19
	Untitled



